
 

 

 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE WEST BRANCH CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING SCHEDULED TO CONVENE AT 7:00 P.M. TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 4, 

2018 IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 110 NORTH POPLAR STREET, WEST 

BRANCH, IOWA. 
 
Mayor Roger Laughlin mayor@westbranchiowa.org 
Mayor Pro Tem Colton Miller mcolton@rocketmail.com 
Council Member Jordan Ellyson Jordanellyson@gmail.com 
Council Member Brian Pierce brianapierce@outlook.com 
Council Member Jodee Stoolman j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com 
Council Member Nick Goodweiler nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com 
City Administrator Redmond Jones II rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org 
City Attorney Kevin Olson kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com 
Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick    leslie@westbranchiowa.org 

 
Please note:  Most written communications to or from government officials regarding government business 

are public records available to the public and media upon request.  Your e-mail communications may 

therefore be subject to public disclosure. 

 

AGENDA 

A. Call to Order 

 

B. Opening Ceremonies 
 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 
2. Welcome 

 

C. Roll Call 

 

D. Guest Speaker, Presentations and Proclamations  
 

 
E. Public Comment 

Anyone wishing to address the City Council may come forward when invited; please state your 

name and address for the record. Public comments are typically limited to three minutes, and 

written comments may be submitted to the Deputy City Clerk. Special instructions for public 

comments will be provided at the meeting if a public hearing or quasi-judicial matter is scheduled 

on the agenda. 

 

F. Approve Agenda / Consent Agenda / Move to Action 
Routine items and items not anticipated to be controversial are placed on the Consent Agenda to 

expedite the meeting.  If a Council member, staff member or member of the Public wishes to discuss 

any item on the Consent Agenda, they can request the item be removed from the Consent Agenda 

for discussion.  The remaining items on the Consent Agenda will be voted on with one motion being 

made for all items on the Consent Agenda 
 

mailto:mayor@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:mcolton@rocketmail.com
mailto:Jordanellyson@gmail.com
mailto:brianapierce@outlook.com
mailto:j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com
mailto:nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com
mailto:leslie@westbranchiowa.org


 

 

1. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting August 20, 2018. 
2. Motion to Approve the Implementation of the newly developed “Block Party Permit 

Application”.   
3. Motion to Approve Special Event Permit Application for the Fall Festival (Kevin 

Roger – Main Street West Branch requesting). 
4. Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 

 

G. Public Hearing / Non-Consent Agenda 
 

1. First Reading, Ordinance 759 – Amending Chapter 122 – Peddlers, Solicitors 
and Transient Merchants. 

2. Discussion Item: Comp Time Policy for the Exempt Employees.  
3. Discussion Item: Consider Design and Location Selection of an Electric Car 

Recharge Station.  
4. Discussion Item: Consider obtaining the road way as a “Public Road” into 

Beranek Park.  
5. Discussion Item: Consider Authorizing the Use of Facebook for an Additional 

City Information Site and Link to the City Web Site. 
6. Discussion Item: “Down Under” Water in Basement Situation. 
7. Resolution 1734 – A Resolution Approving Partial Pay Estimate Number 5 in 

the Amount of $189,204.44 to Needham Excavating INC. for the Cubby Park 
Improvements Project. 

8. Resolution 1735 – In Support of Cedar County Great Places Designation and 
Proceeding with the Iowa Department of Cultural Affairs, FY 2019 Grant 
Places Grant Application for the Cedar County – Pride or Place and People 
Project. 

9. Resolution 1736 – Approving Funds to Exceed $310,000 to be used only if a 
Cultural Affairs, FY 2019 Grant Places Matching Grant is obtained for the Park 
and Mural projects. 

10. Discussion Item: A Review of a Draft Development Agreement regarding the 
“Stuelke Line” Sewer Project and the proposed construction of 57-lot 
residential subdivision; involving KLM Investments. 

11. Motion to Approve Directing the City Administrator to Move Forward without 
Crestview Easement for Electrical Service for Cubby Park. 

 

H. Reports 
 

1. City Administrator’s Report 
2. City Attorney Report 
3. Other Staff Hearsays 

 

I. Comments from Mayor and Council Members 

 

J. Adjournment 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(Minutes) 

 Consent Item 1 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  September 4, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Implementation of the newly developed 

“Block Party Permit Application.  

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  August 30, 2018  
     
BACKGROUND:  

 
There has been several recent Block Party type events.  City Council was under the 

impression that the City held / used an Application form, which we did not.  In order 

to streamline our “Block Party Permit” process an Application was developed.  This 

application and process is similar to our “Special Event Permit” process.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 Consent Item 2 



 

 

   
 

BLOCK PARTY PERMIT APPLICATION 
 
A block party is defined as an event open to a specific/defined neighborhood or 
area; where no admission fee is charged for attendance; where alcoholic 
beverages are not sold or where no entrance fee or admission is charged for 
service of alcoholic beverages; where a street closure, if necessary, shall not 
exceed six (6) hours; where the use of portable restroom facilities is not 
necessary.   
 
Any and all requests for temporary street closings require approval by the West 
Branch City Council. 
 
Name: _____________________________________________________ 
 
Address: ___________________________________________________ 
 
City: _________________________________  State: _________  Zip: ________ 
 
Email: ______________________________  Home Phone: ____________________ 
 
Business Phone: _________________  Cell Phone:__________________________ 
 
Street(s) requested to be temporarily closed for block party, including 
termination points: 
 

 

 

 

 
(example:  Main Street between 1st Avenue and 3rd Avenue) 
 
Date(s) Requested for Block Party        Alternate Date(s) Requested 
 
_________________________________                  _____________________________ 
 
Start Time of Block Party           End Time of Block Party 
 

______________________________                  _____________________________ 
 
Will there be outdoor, live or amplified music?   Y/N 
 
If “yes”, please be aware of noise provisions in West Branch Code of Ordinances, 
Chapter 40.03(2). 
 
Have all neighbors within the enclosed area and/or impacted area been notified 
of the temporary street closure for the event?   Y/N 



 

 

City Barricade Requirements 
 
A $50 refundable deposit is required for the use of barricades.  All block parties 
within the City of West Branch are required to use barricades provided by the 
City of West Branch.  The West Branch Public Works Department will deliver 
barricades on the weekday prior to the block party at the address provided.  
Please return the barricades to the same address to be picked up the first work 
day following the block party.  The barricade deposit shall be refunded at the 
sole discretion of the City of West Branch.  Submit a check for $50, made 
payable to the City of West Branch and mail it to:  City of West Branch, PO Box 
218, West Branch, IA 52358 or drop it off at the City Office at 110 N. Poplar 
Street, West Branch, IA.   
 
I Agree: 
 
I have been advised of the requirements for a Block Party Permit and agree to 
meet all requirements established by the City of West Branch.  Furthermore, I 
understand that if all requirements are not met, the Block Party Permit can be 
cancelled by the City of West Branch at any time, including at the start of or 
during the event.  In the event that an organization is the applicant, I hereby 
certify, that I have the legal authority to represent the applicant and/or the 
participants, and that I have read the above requirements, understand the 
provisions, and freely and voluntarily sign it.  I further understand that the City 
Council of the City of West Branch had the authority to grant or deny for this 
event. 
 
I further voluntarily assume all risk of loss, damage, or injury that may be 
sustained by me or my guests while participating in, traveling from, or observing 
any of the events that are part of the block party, and I hereby release the City of 
West Branch and all its offices, elected officials, employees, and other agents 
from any and all liability associated with the block party. 
 
All picnic tables, inflatables, etc. must be placed on ONE side of the street within 
the approved temporary street closing area in the event that emergency vehicle 
access is needed.   
 
Signature:____________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:______________________________________ 

 
 

For Office Use Only: 

 

Date Application Received: ________________ 

 

City Council Meeting Date: ________________ 

 

City Council Action:  ☐   Approved    ☐   Denied 

 

Date Applicant Notified: __________________________ 

 

Barricade Fee $50.00 (refundable) Paid: _______________ Date Refunded: ____________ 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  September 4, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve a Special Event Permit Application for the “Fall 

Festival” (Kevin Rogers – Main Street West Branch requesting).  

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  August 30, 2018  
     
BACKGROUND:  

 
A fun-filled weekend celebrating the fall season. Pumpkin 
decorating, kids crafts, hay rack rides, a chili cook off, a good 
old fashioned bonfire Friday night, an Art Mart, and historic 
tours Saturday, are only a part of  this family-friendly 
weekend. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 Consent Item 3 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

START / END 

 

HERITAGE 

SQUARE 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  September 4, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Claims Report 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  August 31, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

These are routine expenditures that include such items as payroll, budget expenditures, and 

other financial items that relate to council approved items and/or other day to day 

operational disclosures. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Claims Report – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 4 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  September 4, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: First Reading, Ordinance 759 – Amending Chapter 122 – Peddlers, 

Solicitors and Transient Merchants.  

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  August 30, 2018 

     

BACKGROUND: 

 

Deputy Clerk Brick has compared our current process for evaluating and issuing peddler 

permit applications to 3 other surrounding cities.  During this review, other cities were noted 

that their practices were more thorough than our current process.   

 

Items listed in RED (see attached) represents new information to collect before issuing 

permits to individuals that are not familiar to the City.  By collecting additional information 

from the applicant will increase public safety. 

 

By the addition of the recommended changes, no changes to the ordinance will be needed. 
 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the First Reading – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 Non Consent Item 1 



 

 

 



 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

$   25.00 
 
$   50.00 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  September 4, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: A Compensatory Time (Comp Time) Policy for 

Exempt Employees (Employees not eligible for overtime).  

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  August 30, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
This item is related to the budgetary decision to address soring over-time budget(s) of our 

department directors.  City Council approved moving the city’s department directors away 

from an hourly pay system (non-exempt), to a salaried pay system (exempt). 

 

Moving department directors into an exempt system created situations where directors could 

find themselves engaged with into extra ordinary operation needs and demand for their time, 

but have no additional benefit of time or pay.  Changing from overtime hourly wages to 

non-overtime salary could create burdens for directors who provide direct services and 

administrative direction.  For this reason, I am proposing a comp time policy that allows for 

flexing time within a pay-period only.  Unless granted comp time which will not have a 

payout and must be used within the current fiscal year.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Direction 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 2 



 

 

 

Proposed West Branch Policy 
 

COMP TIME  

The City of West Branch has an established overtime policy for Non-Exempt Employees 

(overtime-eligible employees).  The Compensatory time (Comp Time) policy is only 

eligible for Exempt Employees (non-overtime eligible employees). 

Exempt employees are expected to work whatever hours are necessary in order to meet the 

performance expectations outlined by their supervisors.  Generally, to meet these 

expectations, and for reasons of public accountability, an exempt employee will need to 

work 40 or more hours per week.  Exempt employees do not receive extra pay for hours 

worked over 40 in one workweek. 

 

Exempt employee are paid on a salary basis.  This means that they receive a 

predetermined amount of pay each pay period and are not paid by the hour.  Their pay 

does not vary based on the quality or quantity of the work performed.  Additionally, 

exempt employees receive their full weekly salary for any week in which any work is 

performed.  Exempt employees must be considered to be a director or in some form of 

management.  Exempt employee are allowed to flex their hours during a pay period, but 

will not be able to flex hours that would be used in future pay periods.  Flex hour do not 

roll over.  Instead the only hours that would be allowed to be earned and used from 

different pay periods are hours that are “Comp hours” that are banked.  In order to gain 

banked Comp hours they must be requested and approved by the City Administrator. 

 

Comp time will be granted for extra ordinary, or unforeseen operational demands that 

occur for reasons outside of the director’s control.  Examples of such events could be, but 

are not limited to: Covering Duties for Unforeseen Employee Departures, Major 

Workload Increases for Reasons Unforeseen, Major Weather Events or Emergency 

Management Crisis, and/or Other High Profile Event that require an absorbent amount of 

hours to respond to. 

 

Comp time can be banked but cannot exceed 80 hours annually.  Banked hours are 

encouraged to be used in times of slowdowns in business operations.  Banked Comp time 

hours cannot be rolled from one fiscal year to the next.  If they are not used, they will be 

lost / forfeited. These hours will have no cash value.    

 

 

Adopted: _______________, 2018  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  September 4, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: Consideration to Design and Locate Downtown 

West Branch of an Electric Car Recharge Station. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

DATE:  August 30, 2018  
     
BACKGROUND:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Click here to enter a date. 

Click here to enter text. 

Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, including 

partnering with the school district. 

Click here to enter text. 

November 15, 2017  

 Click here to enter text. 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Direction 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 Non Consent Item 3 

BACKGROUND:  

In 2017 over 2 million Electric Vehicles (EVs) were driving worldwide. By 2020 over 103 

new EV models will be available on the market from all of the major car producers - Nissan, 

Renault, BMW, Mercedes, Volkswagen, Peugeot, Skoda - and more. Prices continue to 

drop while range increases. Bloomberg New Energy Finance predicts that before 2040 sales 

of EVs will overtake those of combustion engine vehicles. 
 
West Branch is designated as a Smart Cities: Smart cities are places where objects and 

infrastructure are networked and able to communicate with each other, thus increasing the 

ability to monitor, control, and connect them. EVs have onboard GPS, software, and 

batteries that can easily network with other devices, creating many more opportunities for 

cities to become smarter and use these advantages to create economic development 

opportunities within the community. 
 

VOLKSWAGEN'S CONTRIBUTION TO IOWA 

As required in the first partial settlement, Volkswagen must pay a total of $2.9 billion into an 

Environmental Mitigation Trust (Trust) to fund defined eligible mitigation actions that will reduce 

nitrogen oxides emissions. Each beneficiary will receive an allocation based on the number of 

registered subject vehicles within its boundaries. Iowa’s allocation from this settlement totals 

$20,179,540.80. The second partial settlement requires Volkswagen to contribute an additional 

$225 million to the Trust. The State of Iowa’s portion of this contribution is $1,022,196.90, which 

brings Iowa’s total Trust allocation to $21,201,737.70 
 
This could provide opportunities to pursue grants that would allow us to continue to be on the 

cutting edge of smart communities. 



 

 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  September 4, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: Consider obtaining the road way as a “Public 

Road” into Beranek Park. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

DATE:  August 30, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 

This has been a long standing issue.  There has been attempts in the past, but it remains that 

Beranek has worst access than any other park in the city.  With no sidewalks and road ways 

that are severely detreated it is becoming hazardous to some just to walking to the park. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Direction 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 4 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  September 4, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: Consider Authorizing the Use of Facebook as an 

Additional City Information Site and Link to the City Web Site.  

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  August 30, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
As per request of City Council, staff has developed a City Facebook page to push 
information to our residents.  Attached is a list of topics that can be posted and 
others if the Council desires.  Posts that require the visitor to obtain additional 
information on a particular subject, will them to our website (via a quick link).  Our 
website hosts forms, in-depth information on particular subjects as well as other 
important information.  The Facebook page is not intended to replace the website, 
just direct more visitors. 
 
The Administrator of this page will be myself and any other staff the Council directs.  
The intent is to have (at least) weekly posts to keep residents informed of City 
activities.   
 
A message will be added to the October water bill to advertise our new page in 
hopes of getting the message out there. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Direction 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 5 



 

 

Appearance (Look & Feel) 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  September 4, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: Down Under has Complaint of water in their 

establishment which they believe is due to past city improvements. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

DATE:  August 30, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
As per a request of Mike Jones this item is to explore the bases of his complaint 
that water is entering his place of business due to nearby city sidewalk 
improvements. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Direction 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

Non Consent Item 6 



 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  September 4, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1734 – A Resolution Approving Partial Pay Estimate 

Number 5 in the Amount of $189,204.44 to Needham Excavating 

INC. for the Cubby Park Improvements Project.      

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Nate Kass, Fehr Graham 

DATE:  August 30, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
This is the fifth pay estimate for work at Cubby Park completed by Needham Excavating 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 7 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

  



 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1734 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING PARTIAL PAY ESTIMATE NUMBER 5 IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $189,204.44 TO NEEDHAM EXCAVATING INC. FOR THE 

CUBBY PARK IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT. 
 

WHEREAS, Needham Excavating Inc. of Walcott, Iowa was awarded the 

construction contract for Cubby Park Improvements for West Branch, Iowa (the “Project”) 

by the West Branch City Council through the passage of Resolution 1680 on January 16, 

2018 in the amount of $2,945,427.39; and 
 

WHEREAS, Needham Excavating has declared that said project has started and 

work has been rendered in accordance with drawings and specifications on the Project, 

based on observations West Branch project managers and the project managers of Fehr 

Graham who are contracted with the City of West Branch to oversee the construction 

process. 
 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of West Branch, approved Partial Pay Estimate 

Number One (1) in the amount of $276,843.04 to Needham Excavating Inc. of Walcott, 

IA is approved on May 7th; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of West Branch also approved the Pay Estimate 

Number Two (2) in the amount of $362,865.81 and at which time the project was 

approximately 24% complete.  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of West Branch also approved the Pay Estimate 

Number Three (3) in the amount of $247,973.87 and the project is now approximately 

32.80% complete.  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of West Branch also approved the Pay Estimate 

Number Four (4) in the amount of $221,684.85 and the project is now approximately 

40.42% complete. 
 
WHEREAS, it is now necessary to for the City Council to accept and approve the 

Pay Estimate Number Five (5) in the amount of $189,204.44 and the project is now 

approximately 47.31% complete. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of West Branch, 

that Partial Pay Estimate Number Four in the amount of $189,204.44 to Needham 

Excavating Inc. of Walcott, IA is approved. 
 

Passed and approved this 4th day of September, 2018. 

 
 
 

      ______________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:  
 
_________________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / City Clerk 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  September 4, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1735 – In Support of Cedar County Great Places 

Designation and Proceeding with the Iowa Department of Cultural 

Affairs, FY 2019 Great Places Grant Application for the Cedar 

County – Pride or Place and People Project. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Melissa Russell, Parks and Recreation Director 

DATE:  August 31, 2018  
     
BACKGROUND:  
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 8 



 

 

 
BACKGROUND 
The success of the Great Places Designation and the opportunity to receive grant funds began in 

partnership with CCEDCO and ECIA over a year and a half ago. It is a result of a long-term 

investment in Cedar County by both organizations of significant time, money and resources.  
 
What started as a general discussion between these two organization regarding the challenges 

Cedar County was facing quickly moved into a plan of action.  After countless meetings, this 

partnership reached out to the Cedar County Board of Supervisors and the University of Iowa 

Sustainable Communities to create a county-wide vision plan for the future of Cedar County. 

With public input and involvement, the vision plan provides a roadmap for future community 

development, cultural development and economic development across Cedar County.   
 
The Vision Plan formed the foundation of a successful Great Places Designation application, in 

which CCEDCO and ECIA lead those efforts, in writing content, working with communities in 

gathering attachment information like support letters and pictures, working with the Great 

Places program officer, and submitting the application.  The Vision Plan, along with input from 

the steering committee, defined the project scope outlined in the Letter of Intent (LOI). After 

LOI submission, our project “Cedar County - Pride of Place and People”, was quickly invited to 

make full application.  This project offers the Cedar County community through public art and 

enhanced parks, additional assets providing a sense of pride and cohesiveness and aligns with 

the goals of the Great Places Program and Vision Plan objectives. The Cedar County 

Development Foundation, the non-profit 501c3 through CCEDCO, was the legal applicant.  

 

DISCUSSION 

The Great Places success up to this point has been the effort driven by CCEDCO and ECIA.  

For the next step of successful Great Places grant award, the partnership needs to be expanded 

to illustrate a full collaborative effort with the Cedar County communities.  It now requires both 

local community effort and commitment that shows county-wide solidarity.  Both ECIA and 

CCEDCO have committed time and resources in getting Cedar County designated as an Iowa 

Great Place and will continue to be committed in helping lay the groundwork in making the 

community more attractive in creating economic development. We are asking the communities 

to be formally committed too. There needs to be local level support; the public has spoken and 

the time is now to implement the Vision Plan. 

 

RECOMMENDATION/ACTION STEP 

To date, CCEDCO and ECIA has unilaterally invested over $15,000 in hours, resources and 

personal to get us to this point at no cost to our communities.  This work has included assisting 

with vision plan development, coordinating/attending meetings, writing the successful 

désignation application, writing the LOI, and grant application groundwork. To be successful 

with our grant application, it is important to show the State the commitment to the five-year 

Great Places Designation and the 2018 grant application extends to all benefiting partners. This 

in large part is why we respectfully request your community, as detailed in the attached 

resolution, to support the Designation and the grant application, the fee for the grant writing 

service, CCEDCO’s administration of the Designation, CCEDCO membership, the grant 

application requesting up to $400,000 for the Cedar County – Pride of Place and People project, 

which will go towards mural and park projects. 
 



 

 

 



 

 

Great Places Pre-Application Summary 

1. Project 1 Integration 

Describe how the vertical infrastructure project for which Great Places funding is 
sought directly relates to the community vision plan that informed your 
designation as a Great Place. (3,000 characters)  
 
“What do you love about your community?” In 2017, University of Iowa - Iowa 
Initiative for Sustainable Communities students, Cedar County, East Central 
Intergovernmental Association, and Cedar County Economic Development 
Commission, set out to answer that question. Community engagement collected 
input from new and longtime residents, families, retirees, etc., about Cedar 
County’s future in group settings, one-on-one interviews, online surveys, and 
general public input, and created a roadmap to transform Cedar County’s future. 
“Cedar County: Envisioning a New Horizon” highlights existing great places in the 
county, and maps out goals, objectives, and implementation strategies.  
 
Now, the people of this great community want to begin implementing their 
vision, through a project that showcases cultural heritage and community 
identity, enhancing physical sense of place through Cedar County - Pride of Place 
and People. The project directly supports the vision plan: Goal 1 – Increase 
entertainment opportunities through art and cultural programs in the county, and 
Goal 2 – Enhance recreation and outdoor amenities to increase quality of life 
outcomes. Creating hometown murals offers all of the communities’ visual 
expression of their values and identity. Developing our hometown parks keeps 
these ideas alive, as central gathering spots for special events and recreation, 
creating a sense of community. The project is an example of working in tandem 
with the overall intent of community betterment. 
 
During the visioning process, many communities identified outdoor murals as an 
opportunity in their towns, site potential for community murals, and additional 
mural opportunities for communities who already have this popular art concept. 
In addition, all communities expressed their appreciation for Cedar County’s 
natural features and want to see more recreation opportunities in the county, 
specifically, increasing parks, recreation, and open space opportunities. All of the 
communities in Cedar County have parks for general recreation purposes and 
more importantly, for community events that celebrate their heritage (farmer’s 
markets, festivals, family reunions) and future (family recreation, planned 
enhancements). City parks are central to these small towns and celebrating them 
and sustaining them is critical.  
 
Pride of Place and People will connect communities by providing each of them 
the opportunity to design an iconic realistic image in a “Vintage Postcard” style 



 

 

that gives representation to the city’s identity, culture and future, while unifying 
their relationships. The murals provide a visual manifestation and the parks 
provide the literal manifestation. The murals reflect the activities and interaction 
that takes place in the parks. This project offers the community of Cedar County 
through public art and enhanced parks, additional assets providing a sense of 
pride and cohesiveness.  
 

2. Project 1 Timeline 

Identify the anticipated start and end date of the major project activities. (3,000 
characters) 
 
In the “Cedar County: Envisioning a New Horizon” vision plan, the steering 
committee estimated a timeframe of 1-2 years to develop and implement a mural 
program and 3-4 years to implement park improvements.  
 
The Cedar County Great Places Steering Committee believes it is important to 
augment this proposal with integral components outside of the grant scope to 
complete the vision. The first, is to again partner with the University of Iowa 
through a fellowship program where the U of I would provide instruction and 
theory for UI students, and they would work through a community-based process 
resulting in the completion of the murals. Possible timeline would be a one-week 
seminar/workshop that would take place during the UI winter break or spring 
break. During the week, students would learn from a variety of experts and 
instructors and begin work on the community project (public engagement 
process, early designs, etc.).  The murals would be installed during the summer of 
2019.   
 
Another component is to develop and adopt mural guidelines for the 
communities to utilize that will serve the municipalities for this grant cycle and 
well into the future. 
 
The final element the Committee realizes is important in bringing the project to 
life is project promotion, with a website, brochures, social media, etc. A capstone 
to the project would be an oral and/or visual history archive where Cedar County 
youth interview others of the community to tell their stories of community 
identity as it relates to the murals and the parks; history of the town and hopes 
for the future. Future app development for the murals and parks has also been 
discussed. 
 
The tentative timeline looks like this for Cedar County - Pride of Place and People: 
 

 January/February, 2019, develop and adopt mural guidelines 

 January/February, 2019, develop painting schedule 



 

 

 January/February, 2019, secure bids for park enhancements 

 Winter Break or Spring Break, 2019, one-week seminar/workshop/begin 
work on community project 

 March/April, 2019, develop promotional plan 

 June/July/August, 2019, murals installed 
 
A more concrete project timeline will be included in the full application. 
 

3. Project 1 Budget Summary 

Briefly summarize the project budget using the most accurate estimate currently 
available, including: 
• Total anticipated project cost including the grant request, cash match 
needed and additional project expenses 
• Eligible vertical infrastructure expenses for which you are seeking grant 
funding 
• Eligible cash match expenses and the sources of the cash match 
• Additional project expenses for each project will be required of applicants 
invited to submit an application (3,000 characters) 
 

The total project cost for Cedar County - Pride of Place and People is roughly 
$626,060, which includes vertical infrastructure costs, along with developing 
mural guidelines, the week-long seminar/workshop, and project promotion. Total 
eligible vertical infrastructure cost is $609,060. Cash match for vertical 
infrastructure costs equals $304,530. The Cedar County Great Places Steering 
Committee is requesting $304,530. Cash match for these vertical infrastructure 
costs is anticipated from the individual communities and other sources. 
 
The Cedar County communities plan to pursue the following vertical 
infrastructure components for the project:  mural installation, new playground 
equipment, park lighting, pergola, playground sand replacement, pavilions, 
rubberized play equipment flooring, benches, canopies, walkways, splash pads, 
ball field construction, and pickleball court. 
 

A finalized budget will be included in the full application. 

4. Total Anticipated Grant Request for Project 1 

$304,530. 
 

5. Total Secured Cash Match to Date for Project 1 

$304,530. 
 
 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1735 

 

 

IN SUPPORT OF THE CEDAR COUNTY GREAT PLACES DESIGNATION AND 

PROCEEDING WITH THE IOWA DEPARTMENT OF CULTURAL AFFAIRS, FY 

2019 GREAT PLACES GRANT APPLICATION FOR THE CEDAR COUNTY - 

PRIDE OF PLACE AND PEOPLE PROJECT 

 
 
WHEREAS, Cedar County, with the help of Cedar County Economic Development 

Commission (CCEDCO), East Central Intergovernmental Association (ECIA), the 

University of Iowa, and other partners, received Iowa Great Places Designation from the 

Iowa Department of Cultural Affairs; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Iowa Great Places Program provides for the opportunity for funding of 

supported vertical infrastructure projects and project endorsement from other agencies to 

designated communities; and 

 

WHEREAS, the ECIA and CCEDCO submitted a Letter of Intent (LOI) on behalf of Cedar 

County to the Iowa Great Places Grant Program and Cedar County Development 

Foundation was invited to submit a full grant application for Cedar County due November 

1, 2018; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of West 

Branch, Iowa: 

 

 Section 1.  That the City of West Branch, Iowa supports the Cedar County five-year 

Great Places Designation and participating in the Great Places 2018 grant application. 

 

 Section 2.  That the City of West Brach, Iowa supports CCEDCO in the oversight, 

facilitation, and grant administration of the Cedar County Great Places Designation. 

 

Section 3. That the City of West Branch, Iowa supports CCEDCO and ECIA preparing 

and submitting the 2018 Cedar County Great Places – Pride of Place and People grant 

application through a contract between ECIA and CCEDCO through current CCEDCO 

member dues and nonmember cities reimbursing CCEDCO at the rate of $417 for grant 

writing fees. 

 

 Section 4.  That the City of West Branch, Iowa supports CCEDCO in managing the 

grant, as the legal applicant through the Cedar County Development Foundation, and 

recognizing CCEDCO’s leadership in managing the Great Places designation and grant, the 

City of West Branch, Iowa will pay its annual dues and remain a member of CCEDCO for 

the 2020 fiscal year.   

 

Section 5.  That the City of West Branch, Iowa supports the Cedar County Great Places 

grant application requesting up to $400,000 for the Cedar County – Pride of Place and 

People project, which will go towards mural and park projects. 



 

 

 

Passed, approved, and adopted this 4th day of September, 2018 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  September 4, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1736 – Approving Funds that do not Exceed $310,000 to 

be used as matching funds should a Cultural Affairs FY19 Great 

Places Matching Grant is obtained for the Park and Mural projects. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  August 31, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
The Great Place Grant potential is an opportunity to leverage fund that we are already 

planning to spend on Cubby Park.  With the combination of cubby park expenses that 

haven’t been completed by July 1st of 2019, the $126,207 of Value Engineering Set aside, 

and remaining contingency budget (currently at $233,585), we should have enough fund to 

match a successful grant application. 

 

We would also have the right to return portions or all of the grant should our priorities 

change.  Not only would a successful grant fund a (recirculating water) splash pad it would 

also be able to fund many of the items removed from the project during the value 

engineering process (including paved over-flow parking).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 9 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1736 

 

APPROVING FUNDS NOT TO EXCEED $310,000 TO BE USED AS MATCHING 

FUNDS SHOULD A CULTURAL AFFAIRS FY19 GREAT PLACES MATCHING 

GRANT BE OBTAINED FOR THE PARK AND MURAL PROJECTS.  

 

WHEREAS, the Iowa Great Places Program provides for the opportunity for funding of 

supported vertical infrastructure projects and project endorsement from other agencies to 

designated communities; and 

 

WHEREAS, the ECIA and CCEDCO submitted a Letter of Intent (LOI) on behalf of Cedar 

County to the Iowa Great Places Grant Program and Cedar County Development 

Foundation was invited to submit a full grant application for the Cedar County Great Places 

– Pride of Place and People project for park improvements and murals due November 1, 

2018; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of West 

Branch, Iowa: 

 

Section 1.  That the City of West Branch, Iowa supports the Cedar County Great Places 

grant application requesting $310.000 for the Cedar County – Pride of Place and People 

project, which will go towards mural and park projects. 

 

Section 2.  That the City of West Branch, Iowa intends to provide cash match in the amount 

of $310,000 (must equal the request amount in Section 1) to go toward their portion of the 

Cedar County – Pride of Place and People project, if awarded an Iowa Great Places grant in 

FY 2019. 

 

 

 Passed, approved, and adopted this 4th day of September, 2018 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  September 4, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: A Review of a Draft Development Agreement 

regarding the “Stuelke Line” Sewer Project and the proposed 

construction of 57-lot residential subdivision; involving KLM 

Investments. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  August 31, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
The Stuelke Line located in the present day KLM Investment property known as The 

Meadows.  Is in need of replacement; however, with the city current debt capacity and with 

sewer enterprise funds being prepared for major investments in wastewater processing.  The 

City would not likely be in the position to replace the Stuelke line for at least the next seven 

years (if not longer). 

 

This would certainly slow development in town.  Since our sewer capacity on this line would 

not withstand the additional demands placed on it by the proposed new housing.  

Incentivized by keeping development steady and growing; the City supports the concept of 

partnering with KLM to abandon and replace the sewer line.  This will also afford the city 

savings based on the anticipated cost for future construction as compared today construction 

cost.  Industry Standards forecast construction cost rising anywhere from 4% - 7% a year.  

A $400,000 project to day could cost $512,000 – $596,000 in seven year. 

 

Although, City Attorney Kevin Olson will not be attending our September 4th City Council 

Meeting he would like the City Council to review the number in the draft and provide 

direction as what should be reflected in a final version intended to be presented at the 

September 17th meeting. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Direction 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 10 



 

 

 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is entered into by and between the City of West Branch, Iowa (the 

“City”), 110 Poplar Street, West Branch, Iowa 52358 and KLM Investments, Inc. (the 

“Development”).  

WHEREAS, the City has established the West Branch Urban Renewal Area (the 

“Urban Renewal Area”); and 

WHEREAS, the Developer proposes to construct a 57-lot residential subdivision, 

which will include both one and two-family residences (the “Project”); and  

WHEREAS, the Project will be constructed on Lots 1 through 57, The Meadows 

Subdivision, Part Four, West Branch, Iowa, (the “Development Property”); and 

WHEREAS, the Developer has entered into a Subdivider’s Agreement with the City 

outlining the public improvements necessary to complete the Project, and 

WHEREAS, the Developer has requested tax increment financing assistance in the 

form of an economic development grant consisting of tax rebates to assist in the construction 

of the Project at a faster pace than was the planned phasing of the Project; and 

WHEREAS, Chapters 15A and 403 of the Code of Iowa authorize cities to provide 

grants, loans, guarantees, tax incentives and other financial assistance to or for the benefit 

of private persons;  

NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

A. Company’s Covenants. 

 1. The Developer will submit a final plat for The Meadows Subdivision, 

Part Four for approval by the City Council. 

 2. The Developer shall within one year of the approval of the final plat, 

construct all of the improvements as outlined in the Subdivider’s Agreement. 

 3. The Developer, its assigns and successors, shall pay all property 

taxes when due. 

 

B. City’s Obligations 

1. The City shall amend the West Branch Urban Renewal Plan in strict 

compliance with Chapter 403 of the Code of Iowa to add the Project so that it is eligible 

for $395,000 worth of tax increment financing rebate payments to the Developer. 



 

 

 

2. The City shall adopt such ordinances pursuant to Chapter 403 of the Code 

of Iowa to collect incremental tax revenues for Lots 1 through 57, The Meadows 

Subdivision, Part Four, Coralville, Iowa and keep such ordinances in place throughout the 

terms of this Agreement. 

2. Upon submitting the required documentation as outlined in Section (A) 

above to show compliance with this Agreement, the City shall make annual incremental 

tax payments to the Developer which shall be 75% of the total incremental tax revenues 

received by the City from Lots 1 through 57, The Meadows Subdivision, Part Four (the 

“Payments”).  Said Payments shall continue until such time the total aggregate Payments 

equal $395,000 or December 31, 2035, whichever occurs sooner.  In the event that the 

Developer has not received the $395,000 by December 31, 2035, the Developer expressly 

agrees that it will have no further claim against the City for any shortfall of Payments.   

3. The Payment shall not constitute general obligations of the City but shall 

be made solely and only from incremental property taxes received by the City from the 

Cedar County Treasurer which are attributable to the Property and is subject to annual 

appropriation of the City Council on or before December 1st of each year this Agreement 

is in effect. 

C. Administrative Provisions. 

 1. This Agreement may not be amended or assigned by either party 

without the express permission of the other party.  However, the City hereby gives its 

permission that the Developer’s rights to receive the economic development tax increment 

payments hereunder may be assigned by the Developer to a private lender, as security, 

without further action on the part of the City. 

 2. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the 

successors and assigns of the parties. 

 3. This Agreement shall be deemed to be a contract made under the laws 

of the State of Iowa and for all purposes shall be governed by and construed in accordance 

with laws of the State of Iowa. 

  4. Notices.  All notices given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in 

writing and shall be given by United States registered or certified mail, with return receipt 

requested, or by a national overnight next day business courier service (such as Federal 

Express), postage or delivery charges prepaid, addressed to the parties at the addresses set 

forth below: 

 

   If to City, to: 

 

   City of West Branch, Iowa 

   110 N. Poplar Street 

   West Branch, Iowa 52358 



 

 

   ATTN:  City Administrator 

 

 

 

   If to Developer, to: 

 

   KLM Investments, Inc. 

   c/o 25 Eastview Place NE 

   Iowa City, Iowa 52240 

    

 

 The addresses to which notice are to be given may be changed at any time by any 

part upon written notice to the other party.  All notices given pursuant to this Agreement 

shall be deemed given upon receipt.  For purposes of this Agreement, the term “receipt” 

shall mean the earlier of any of the following:  (i) the date of delivery of the notice or 

other document to the address specified above as shown on the return receipt, (ii) the date 

of actual receipt of the notice or other document by the party to whom it was sent, or (iii) 

in the case of refusal to accept delivery or inability to deliver the notice or other document, 

the earlier of (a) the date of the attempted delivery or refusal to accept delivery, (b) the 

date of the postmark on the return receipt, or (c) the date of receipt of notice of refusal or 

notice of non-delivery by the sending party. 

 

The City and the Developer have caused this Agreement to be signed, and the City’s 

seal to be affixed, in their names and on their behalf by their duly authorized officers, all as 

of the day and date written above. 

CITY OF WEST BRANCH, IOWA 

 

       By: _______________________ 

Roger Laughlin 

Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

_________________________ 

Redmond Jones II 

City Administrator / City Clerk   KLM Investments, Inc. 

 

 

By:      

      ______________________________ 

 

______________________________ 

Print name and title 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  September 4, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve Directing the City Administrator to Move 

Forward without Crestview Easement for Electrical Service for 

Cubby Park. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  August 31, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

This item will get pulled (Tabled Indefinitely) should the agreement get signed 

Tuesday before the City Council Meeting.  For all intents and purposes the agreement has 

been agreed to via phone conversations and e-mail; however, the principle(s) are not signing 

the agreement.  The delays are costing the project and could even cause a change order or 

affect the contingency budget for the cost of running generators for irrigation to protect the 

seeding of baseball fields.  Fehr Graham also indicates that there are other aspects to the 

project that also could be held up, if these delays continue.  Aliant Energy believes it will 

take three weeks once the agreement is signed before they can get started.  Therefore every 

day that goes by is costing the project money.  With this mind this agenda item will ask the 

City Council to give the City Administrator the authority to give the Aliant Energy the 

approval to move forward with the plan to connect Cubby Park without the easement despite 

an anticipated $10,000-$15,000 increase in project cost.  Since the next opportunity to see 

this item should in not get resolved would be September 17th, it would be important to 

authorize the City Administrator to either resolve outstanding issues with Crestview or 

Move forward before another 2 weeks expire which could cost the project even more that 

the current change order. 

 

Attached is an e-mail tree which would seemly appear to indicate we are in agreement, but 

we have been given excuses over the past 3 weeks on reasons of vacation(s), a changes on 

size and type of fencing, and just plan inaction.   

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Direction 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 11 



 

 

Gordon has been waiting on Dave Dixon with their corporate office to sign the agreement for over 
a week.  Since making a phone call directly to Dave 27th of August.  The following week of my last 
e-mail.  It was expressed how urgent a response was needed. 
 

 
 
FYI – see below 
 
Redmond Jones II 
City Administrator 
City of West Branch 
110 N. Poplar St., P.O. Box 218 
West Branch, Iowa 52358 
 
(319) 643-5888 x 15 
(319) 643-2305 fax 
 
 
 
From: Cheryl J Mercer (Crestview) [mailto:cmercer@CareInitiatives.org]  
Sent: Thursday, August 23, 2018 5:34 PM 
To: Redmond Jones <rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org> 
Subject: RE: FW: fence 

 

This message was sent securely using ZixCorp.  

 

That sounds fine. Thanks.  I will let you know as soon as I hear something from Dave regarding 
the agreement. 
  
Cheryl Mercer | Administrator 

Crestview Specialty Care | 451 West Orange Street, West Branch, Iowa 52358 
D: (319) 643-2551 | C: (319) 359-0108 | F: (319) 643-2139 
cmercer@careinitiatives.org 
careinitiatives.org 

 
  
For All of Life’s Health Transitions. 
  
Care Initiatives is an Equal Opportunity and Affirmative Action employer for veterans and individuals with 
disabilities. 
  
  
  

mailto:cmercer@CareInitiatives.org
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
http://www.zixcorp.com/get-started/
mailto:cmercer@careinitiatives.org


 

 

From: Redmond Jones [mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org]  

Sent: Thursday, August 23, 2018 5:32 PM 
To: Cheryl J Mercer (Crestview) 

Subject: RE: FW: fence 
  

 
  
Yes, we can work with you if you are wanting to have the fence installed sooner, but my thought 
was to do it at the time of the shrubs / landscaping will be installed.  This would be done before 
the park is open.  If you have different thoughts… please let me know. 
  
  
  
Redmond Jones II 
City Administrator 
City of West Branch 
110 N. Poplar St., P.O. Box 218 
West Branch, Iowa 52358 
  
(319) 643-5888 x 13 
(319) 643-2305 fax 
  
  
  
From: Cheryl J Mercer (Crestview) [mailto:cmercer@CareInitiatives.org]  
Sent: Thursday, August 23, 2018 11:06 AM 
To: Redmond Jones <rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org> 
Subject: RE: FW: fence 

  

This message was sent securely using ZixCorp.  

  
This says that the fence will be constructed prior to acceptance by the council.. Does that mean 
“before people start using the space”?  Dave is reviewing the agreement with our real estate 
attorneys and will get back to me.  Thanks 
  
Cheryl Mercer | Administrator 

Crestview Specialty Care | 451 West Orange Street, West Branch, Iowa 52358 
D: (319) 643-2551 | C: (319) 359-0108 | F: (319) 643-2139 
cmercer@careinitiatives.org 
careinitiatives.org 

 
  
For All of Life’s Health Transitions. 
  

mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:cmercer@CareInitiatives.org
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
http://www.zixcorp.com/get-started/
mailto:cmercer@careinitiatives.org


 

 

Care Initiatives is an Equal Opportunity and Affirmative Action employer for veterans and individuals with 
disabilities. 
  
  
  
From: Redmond Jones [mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org]  

Sent: Tuesday, August 21, 2018 5:32 PM 
To: Cheryl J Mercer (Crestview) 

Cc: 'Kevin D. Olson'; 'Matt Goodale'; melissa@westbranchiowa.org 
Subject: FW: FW: fence 
  
  

 
  
Cheryl, 
  
Please see the agreement that has been changed to reflect the recent revisions.   
  
Redmond Jones II 
City Administrator 
City of West Branch 
110 N. Poplar St., P.O. Box 218 
West Branch, Iowa 52358 
  
(319) 643-5888 x 13 
(319) 643-2305 fax 
  
  
  
From: Kevin D. Olson [mailto:kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com]  
Sent: Tuesday, August 21, 2018 3:59 PM 
To: Redmond Jones <rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org> 
Subject: Re: FW: fence 

  

Here is the revised agreement with the height change and I inserted language for the 

direction. 

  

On Tue, Aug 21, 2018 at 3:57 PM Redmond Jones <rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org> 

wrote: 
  
  

 
  
Kevin 

mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:melissa@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org


 

 

Please see below 
  
  
  
  
Redmond Jones II 
City Administrator 
City of West Branch 
110 N. Poplar St., P.O. Box 218 
West Branch, Iowa 52358 
  
(319) 643-5888 x 13 
(319) 643-2305 fax 
  
  
  
From: Redmond Jones [mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org]  

Sent: Tuesday, August 21, 2018 3:54 PM 

To: 'Cheryl J Mercer (Crestview)' <cmercer@CareInitiatives.org>; 'melissa@westbranchiowa.org' 

<melissa@westbranchiowa.org>; 'mattg@westbranchiowa.org' <mattg@westbranchiowa.org>; 

'laughlin@lcom.net' <laughlin@lcom.net> 

Cc: 'Dave Dixon' <ddixon@CareInitiatives.org> 

Subject: RE: fence 
  
  
  

 
  
Cheryl, 
  
That is great, I will have the City Attorney make the changes right away.  Is this a decision 

/paperwork that can now be signed as soon as the connections, or will there be a need for another 

Care Initiatives Board Meeting?  Time is of the essence as other aspects of the park could be 

affected.  Please let me know. 
  
  
  
Redmond Jones II 
City Administrator 
City of West Branch 
110 N. Poplar St., P.O. Box 218 
West Branch, Iowa 52358 
  
(319) 643-5888 x 13 
(319) 643-2305 fax 
  
  
  

mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:cmercer@CareInitiatives.org
mailto:melissa@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:melissa@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:mattg@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:mattg@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:laughlin@lcom.net
mailto:laughlin@lcom.net
mailto:ddixon@CareInitiatives.org


 

 

From: Cheryl J Mercer (Crestview) [mailto:cmercer@CareInitiatives.org]  

Sent: Monday, August 20, 2018 4:29 PM 

To: Redmond Jones <rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org>; melissa@westbranchiowa.org; 

mattg@westbranchiowa.org; laughlin@lcom.net 

Cc: Dave Dixon <ddixon@CareInitiatives.org> 

Subject: re: fence 
  

This message was sent securely using ZixCorp.  

  
All - I would like to convey changes being requested after discussion Dave at our corporate 

office.  We would like the AGREEMENT to be changed to indicate installation of a five foot high, 

green chain link fence that runs from the street (Scott Drive) to the hill located northeast of the 

garage behind our building.  We would like to agree in advance of the placement of this fence on 

the border of our property if we will be maintaining it.  We would like the fence to be up by the 

end of the first phase of the project.  The agreement and utility easement have been forwarded to 

our legal counsel for review of any additional concerns.   
Cheryl  
  
Cheryl Mercer | Administrator 
Crestview Specialty Care | 451 West Orange Street, West Branch, Iowa 52358 
D: (319) 643-2551 | C: (319) 359-0108 | F: (319) 643-2139 

cmercer@careinitiatives.org 

careinitiatives.org 

 
  

For All of Life’s Health Transitions. 
  
Care Initiatives is an Equal Opportunity and Affirmative Action employer for veterans and 

individuals with disabilities. 
  
  
  
NOTICE: This E-mail (including attachments) is covered by the Electronic 

Communications Privacy Act, 18 U.S.C. §§ 2510-2521, is confidential and may be legally 

privileged. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any retention, 

dissemination, distribution, or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. Please 

reply to the sender that you have received the message in error, then delete it.  

 

 

 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------  

This message was secured by ZixCorp(R).  
NOTICE: This E-mail (including attachments) is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, 18 

U.S.C. §§ 2510-2521, is confidential and may be legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient, you 

are hereby notified that any retention, dissemination, distribution, or copying of this communication is 

strictly prohibited. Please reply to the sender that you have received the message in error, then delete it.  

mailto:cmercer@CareInitiatives.org
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:melissa@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:mattg@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:laughlin@lcom.net
mailto:ddixon@CareInitiatives.org
http://www.zixcorp.com/get-started/
mailto:cmercer@careinitiatives.org
http://careinitiatives.org/
http://www.zixcorp.com/


 

 

 

 

 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------  

This message was secured by ZixCorp(R).  
NOTICE: This E-mail (including attachments) is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, 18 

U.S.C. §§ 2510-2521, is confidential and may be legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient, you 

are hereby notified that any retention, dissemination, distribution, or copying of this communication is 

strictly prohibited. Please reply to the sender that you have received the message in error, then delete it.  

 

 

 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------  

This message was secured by ZixCorp(R).  

http://www.zixcorp.com/
http://www.zixcorp.com/

